
 

 

Notice & Agenda 
 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 
 

Tuesday, December 19, 2017 

9:00 AM 

Benson City Council Chambers – 1410 Kansas Ave, Benson, MN 
 

If you need any type of accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the County Administrator at 

320-314-8399 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Times are only estimates and items may be taken out of order. 
 

        Time     Reference                                      Item                                             
 

 9:00 a.m.  Call to Order and Roll Call  

   9:01 a.m.                     Approve Agenda 

  9:03 a.m.  Consent Agenda  

  1-3 (1) Minutes from the December 6, 2017 Regular Meeting 

  4-31 (2) Consider approving the Board Ratification Statement for 

Professional Services Agreement between MnCCC 

and STI  

  32 (3) Consider approving the Annual Human Services Contracts 

  33-34 (4) Consider approving the new MN/DOT agreement to handle 

Federal Funds for the County  

 9:04 a.m.  Consider Approval of Commissioner warrants and review Auditor 

warrants 

 9:05 a.m.  Commissioner and Board reports  

 9:20 a.m.  County Administrator report 

 9:25 a.m.  Citizens Comments  

 9:26 a.m.                  Liz Auch, Countryside Public Health  

    Quarterly Update 

 9:50 a.m.                  Ashlie Johnson, Countryside Public Health SHIP  

 10:00 a.m.            Scott Collins, Environmental Services  

  35-38  Consider approval of the Swift County Recyclables Pickup  

     Contract with Geyer Recycling and Demolition Landfill 

  39-53  Buffer Ordinance  

    Follow-up on Conditional Use Permits 

 10:15 a.m.                  Catie Lee, Human Services  

  54-55  Consider approval of letter of support to Southwestern Minnesota  

     Adult Mental Health Consortium Grant application  

  56-66  Consider approval of Child Welfare/Juvenile Justice Screening  

     Grant  

  67-72  Monthly Update 

 10:45 a.m.          Other Business 

  73-75  Consider setting 2018 levy and final budget for Swift County 

  76  Consider setting 2018 levy and final budget for the RDA 

  77  Consider setting 2018 levy and final budget for the HRA 

  78-79  Consider setting 2018 Commissioner salaries and schedule of 

per diem   

  80-84  Discussion on 2018 board committee assignments 

  85-86  Discussion on SCBH board appointments 

  87-88  Discussion on 2018 board work plan 

 11:10 a.m.  Adjournment  



 

 

SWIFT COUNTY BOARD MINUTES 

December 6, 2017 
  
Chairman Rudningen called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM with all members present. Also present: 

County Administrator Kelsey Baker, County Auditor Kim Saterbak, County Assessor Wayne Knutson, 

Environmental Services Director Scott Collins, Parks and Drainage Supervisor Michael Johnson, and 

Sheriff John Holtz. 

 

12-06-17-01 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the agenda as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

12-06-17-02 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner E. Pederson seconded to approve the Consent 

Agenda items: (1) Approval of Minutes from the November 21, 2017 Regular Meeting, (2) Approval of 

the Clifton Larson Allen engagement letter, (3) Appointment of two members to the HRA board, Karla 

Schmidt representing the Appleton area and Julie Commerford representing the Danvers area, (4) 

Approval of the MN AIS program resolution, (5) Approval of the MN DNR Grant in aids program 

resolution, (6) Approval of the Swift County Emergency Operations Plan, (7) Approval of the annual 

Human Services contracts. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

12-06-17-03 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Peterson seconded to approve the 

Commissioner warrants as follows: Revenue: $63,908.48; Solid Waste: $16,964.41; Road and Bridge: 

$84,389.38; Amundson Peterson, $6,700; Anoka County Treasury Office, $2,000; Dooley Petroleum, Inc., 

$2,180.62; Geo Comm, Inc., $11,378.00; Geyer Recycling, $5,862.50; Life Insurance Co. of N. America, 

$4,163.60; Maney International of Alexandria, $5,124.16; Soil Conservation Office, $17,375.00; Sun Life 

Financial, $3,363.61; Swift County DAC, $2,139.78; Swift County HRA, $19,918.11; Swift County RDA, 

$23,592.04; Treasurer, Appleton Township $17,707.33;Treasurer, Benson Township, $19,770.71; 

Treasurer, Camp Lake Township $26,797.43; Treasurer, Cashel Township $32,932.42; Treasurer, City Of 

Appleton $14,523.62; Treasurer, City Of Benson $10,138.87; Treasurer, City Of Clontarf $8,783.96; 

Treasurer, City Of Danvers $5,270.60; Treasurer, City Of DeGraff $2,801.80; Treasurer, City Of 

Holloway $5,324.87; Treasurer, City Of Kerkhoven $8,821.47; Treasurer, City Of Murdock $2,445.25; 

Treasurer, Clontarf Township $16,197.97; Treasurer, Dublin Township $32,997.72; Treasurer, Edison 

Township $20,957.58; Treasurer, Fairfield Township $18,397.51; Treasurer, Hayes Township $28,775.83; 

Treasurer, Hegbert Township $24,122.69; Treasurer, Kerkhoven Township $23,954.54; Treasurer, Kildare 

Township $31,671.57; Treasurer, Marysland Township $22,309.30; Treasurer, Moyer Township 

$21,064.46; Treasurer, Pillsbury Township $29,352.18; Treasurer, Shible Township $13,178.81; 

Treasurer, Six Mile Grove Twp. $12,597.49; Treasurer, Swenoda Township $34,190.78; Treasurer, Tara 

Township $25,802.29; Treasurer, Torning Township $19,967.39; Treasurer, West Bank Township 

$39,263.85; Upper MN River Watershed District $4,855.24; Upper MN Valley RDC, $20,164.58; Van 

Heuveln General; Contracting Inc., $52,197.90; Van Heuveln Inc./K, $32,191.48; Waste Management of 

Northern Minnesota, $8,278.59; Wold Architects & Engineers, $5,947.70; Ziegler Inc., $4,069.60. Motion 

carried unanimously.  

 

Board and Committee Reports were given as follows: Commissioner Gary Hendrickx reported on AMC 

annual conference, Prairie Waters Tourism and Southern Prairie Community Care. Commissioner P. 

Peterson reported on HRA, Prairie Five Rides, Senior Nutrition System and Building Committee. 

Commissioner E. Pederson reported on Joint Ditch meeting with Chippewa County, Extension and 

Historical Society. Commissioner Fox reported on Hospital Finance committee, Joint Ditch Meeting with 

Chippewa County, and AMC annual conference. Chairman Rudningen reported on Extension and AMC 

annual conference. 

 

Administrator Baker reported on the Building Committee, Blandin Foundation, Personnel Report and 

1



 

 

schedule update.  

 

Chairman Rudningen asked for citizens comments.  There were none. 

 

12-06-17-04 Commissioner Fox moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to open the public 

hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

The Public Hearing for the second reading of the buffer ordinance was opened at 5:30 PM.  

 

Allen Saunders asked several questions regarding the buffer.  

 

SWCD District Technician Andy Albertson was also available to answer questions and a lengthy 

discussion was held. 

 

12-06-17-05 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to close the public 

hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

The Public Hearing for the second reading of the buffer ordinance was closed at 5:56 PM.  

 

12-06-17-06 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the second 

reading of the buffer ordinance. Motion carried 4-1 with Commissioner P. Peterson opposing.  

 

Environmental Services Director Scott Collins presented on the Conditional Use Permits and requested the 

Board to table the motion, pending liability answers. The board requested to make a decision at the next 

board meeting, December 19, 2017. Several questions were asked and a lengthy discussion was held. 

 

12-06-17-07 Commissioner E. Pederson moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to table the 

approval of the conditional use permits. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Auditor Saterbak requested approval to prepare and submit a grant application to the Minnesota Secretary 

of State to purchase election equipment. 

 

12-06-17-08 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner Fox seconded to approve the request to 

have the Auditor prepare and submit a grant application to the Minnesota Secretary of State. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

12-06-17-09 Commissioner Hendrickx moved and Commissioner P. Peterson seconded to open the Truth-

in-Taxation Hearing.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Administrator Baker presented the 2018 Final Levy and Budget overview presentation. Several questions 

were asked and a lengthy discussion was held. 

 

12-06-17-10 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner Hendrickx seconded to close the Truth-

in-Taxation Hearing.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 

12-06-17-11 Commissioner P. Peterson moved and Commissioner E. Pederson seconded to adjourn. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:16 PM.  

  

WITNESSED:  

 

2



 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Eric Rudningen, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

 

3



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

County Attorney’s Office Danielle Olson 320-843-2134 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Board Ratification Statement for Professional Services Agreement between MnCCC and STI  
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Consent Agenda Yes 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Minnesota Counties Computer Cooperative has secured a new vendor (STI) to support the MCAPS 
computer program that the County Attorney’s Office uses to manage all legal files.  The support 
agreement will go into effect 1/1/18.  Support fees remain the same as 2017.  The software program 
has been in place for 10+ years. 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: No additional funding is required. 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
 

 

4



BOARD RATIFICATION STATEMENT 

The Board of __________________________________ has ratified the PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN MINNESOTA COUNTIES COMPUTER COOPERATIVE 
And STRATEGIC TECHNOLOGIES INCORPORATED for the maintenance and support of 
MCAPS. 

The Agreement will be effective January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2022.  This 
Agreement commits the participating members for the term of the contract and the 
financial obligations associated with this contract.  

Signed: _______________________________________________________ 
Board Chair 

Date: _______________________________________________________ 

Attest: _______________________________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________________________ 

Date: _______________________________________________________ 

Swift County

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



 

Request for Board Action 
  BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services  Catie Lee  320‐843‐6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Approve Annual Human Services Contracts 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT?

Regular board  Yes 
IS THIS MANDATED?  EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Most are  County Board action needs to be taken to review 
and approve the Contracts 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Contracted Agent  Services 
Contracted 

Date of contract   Changes from previous 
contract 

Presbyterian Family 
Foundation 

Court Related 
Services & Trans 

1/1/18‐12/31/18  No Change 

Divine House  Semi‐
Independent 
Living Services 

1/1/18‐12/31/18  No Change 

The contracts are located in the drop box for your review. 

PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING:  Annual Budget 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY:  COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR:

Danielle Olson  Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  RECOMMENDATIONS:

Click here to enter text.   
COMMENTS:  COMMENTS:

n/a  Click here to enter text. 
 

32



 

Request for Board Action 
  BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Highway  Andrew Sander  (320) 842‐5251 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: Request to approve the new MN/DOT Agreement to handle Federal 
Funds for the County 
 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT?

December 19, 2017  yes 
IS THIS MANDATED?  EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

no   
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

This contract has been approved in the past and is renewed when the current one expires 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

none 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING:  County 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY:  COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR:

Danielle Olson  Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  RECOMMENDATIONS:

XXX  XXX 
COMMENTS:  COMMENTS:

XXX  XXX 
 

Board Action 

Motions 
___ J Fox     ___ G Hendrickx     ___ E Pederson    ___ P Peterson      ___ E Rudningen  
Action  Vote

   

 

33



 
 
 

RESOLUTION  
 

MNDOT FEDERAL DCP AGREEMENT 1030076  
 
 

Motion by Commissioner_________________      Seconded by Commissioner_______________ 
 
WHEREAS, Swift County wish to cooperate with the Minnesota Department of Transportation 
and other units of government in the delivery of transportation services; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Swift County Board of Commissioners does 
under Minnesota Stat. Sec. 161.36 hereby authorize the Commissioner of Transportation be 
appointed as Agent of Swift County to accept as its agent, federal aid funds which may be made 
available for eligible transportation related projects, and  
 
BE IT further RESOLVED, that the County Board Chairman is authorized and the County 
Administrator are hereby authorized and directed for and on behalf of the County to execute and 
enter into an agreement with the Commissioner of Transportation prescribing the terms and 
conditions of said federal aid participation as set forth and contained in “Minnesota Department of 
Transportation Agency Agreement No. 1030076”, a copy of which said agreement was before the 
County Board and which is made a part hereof by reference. 
  
Dated at Benson, Minnesota this 19th day of December, 2017. 
 
 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 

      Eric Rudningen, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 
 
 
 
Fox  __   Hendrickx  __  E. Pederson  __ 
P. Peterson __   Rudningen __ 
 

34



 

Request for Board Action 
  BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Environmental Services  Scott Collins  320‐843‐2356 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Approval of the Swift County Recyclables Pickup Contract with Swift County Environmental Services. 
 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT?

12‐19‐2017  Yes 
IS THIS MANDATED?  EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

No  Click here to enter text. 
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Three year contract renewal with Geyer Recycling and Demolition Landfill & S.C.E.S. for recyclables 
pickup in Swift County, which reflects a 2% increase annually. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING:   
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY:  COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR:

Danielle Olson  Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  RECOMMENDATIONS:

Click here to enter text.  Click here to enter text. 
COMMENTS:  COMMENTS:

Click here to enter text.  Click here to enter text. 
 

Board Action 

Motions 
___ E.  Rudningen     ___ G.  Hendrickx     ___ E. Pederson     ___ P.  Peterson      ___ J. Fox  
Action  Vote

   

 

35



SWIFT COUNTY RECYCLABLES PICKUP CONTRACT 

 

 
This agreement is made on this 7th day of December, 2017, by and between Swift County and 

Geyer Recycling and Demolition Landfill, hereinafter “Hauler”. 

 

 WHEREAS, Swift County has negotiated for county wide recyclable pickup pursuant to 

law, and have agreed upon the bid of Hauler; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Both parties hereto wish to enter into a written agreement for the pickup of 

county wide recyclables. 

 

 THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

 

1.  Hauler shall provide weekly curbside recyclable pickup to each single and double family 

dwelling in the cities of Appleton, Benson, Clontarf, Danvers, DeGraff, Holloway, 

Kerkhoven and Murdock.  For the convenience of county residents, Hauler shall use its best 

efforts to pick up recyclables on the same day as other refuse is picked up. 

 

2.  Hauler shall deliver all recyclables to Swift County Environmental Services Facility at 

Benson, Minnesota, and shall drop recyclables at areas designated by County personnel. 

 

3.  Hauler and its employees shall use their best efforts to assist Swift County residents with 

recycling questions in order to encourage compliance with mandatory recycling and to 

encourage cooperation necessary to successfully carry out the county recycling program. 

 

4.  Hauler may pick up recycling material from businesses and residents not covered by this 

contract using the county provided recycling trailer.  All material shall be delivered to the 

Swift County Environmental Services Facility. 

 

5.  Hauler shall insure all equipment owned or used by Hauler in fulfillment of this contract.  

Said insurance shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per 

occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  Swift County shall be named as an 

additional insured on such insurance policy. 

 

6.  Hauler shall also carry all necessary workers compensation insurance on all its employees 

and make all necessary contributions of Social Security for its employees. 

 

7.  Hauler shall make available to Swift County, upon request, a certificate verifying all such 

insurance coverages. 

 

8.  Hauler agrees to indemnify Swift County and hold Swift County harmless from any and all 

damages, judgments or costs which Swift County may incur through performance of this 

contract by Hauler. 

36



9.  Hauler shall keep records for and monitor participation rates of households recycling, 

number of households being served, and complaints and corrective actions.  Hauler shall 

report the requested information to Swift County upon request. 

 

10. All recyclables placed for collection by Hauler are the property of Swift County. 

 

11. All equipment used by Hauler in performance of this contract shall comply with the Swift 

County Solid Waste Ordinance and all applicable state laws and regulations. 

 

12. For the services to be rendered by Hauler under this contract, Swift County shall pay the 

following amounts: 2018 - $71,757 / $5,980.00 per month; 2019 - $73,192 / $6,099.00 per 

month; 2020 - $74,656 / $6,221.00 per month.  Such payments shall be made on or after the 

third Tuesday of each month beginning on January 1, 2015. 

 

13. Hauler and County shall start negotiations for extension or new contract by July 1, 2017.  

This contract shall terminate on December 31, 2017, unless terminated or extended prior to 

said date in accordance with the provisions below. 

 

14. Either party may terminate this contract by giving 30 days written notice to the other party.  

Upon termination of this contract, all services rendered to date shall be paid in full; and all of 

the rights, duties, and obligation of the parties to each other shall end. 

 

15. This contract may be extended on the same terms and conditions, except Hauler 

compensation, if both parties mutually agree.  If either party wishes to extend this contract 

that party shall notify the other party in writing at least sixty (60) days before the termination 

date of this contract.  Hauler compensation may be renegotiated by the parties at the time of 

any extension of this agreement.  If both parties agree to such an extension, an extension 

agreement shall be signed by both parties before the termination date set forth above. 

 

Customer’s cost of rates may be adjusted only after negotiation between the parties.  Any 

rate adjustment agreed to after negotiations shall be made in writing and signed by the parties 

hereto.   

 

16. This contract is not assignable by either party. 

 

17. The parties agree that the relationship created by this contract is that of an independent 

contractor and not that of employee and employer.  Hauler is responsible for the payment of 

any taxes, including without limitation all Federal, State and local personal and business 

income taxes, sales and use taxes, other business taxes and licenses fees arising out of the 

activities of Hauler. 

 

 

 

 

18. All notices to be given under this contract shall be made in writing and delivered to the 

following addresses: 

37



 

 Swift County:  Swift County Environmental Services, P.O. Box 207, 1000 Industrial 

Drive, Benson, MN  56215 

 

 Geyer Recycling:  Dennis Geyer, 685 70th St. NE, Benson, MN  56215 

 

19. The foregoing contract constitutes the full and complete agreement of the parties and this 

contract shall supersede all prior written or oral understandings. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The parties have made and executed this agreement on the 

date indicated above. 

 

 

SWIFT COUNTY      HAULER 

 

 

By:                                                                  By:                                                    

      Eric Rudningen, Chair          Dennis H. Geyer 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

 

38



 
SWIFT COUNTY BUFFER ENFORCEMENT ORDINANCE PURSUANT TO STATUTES SECTION 103F.48 

 

 

1.0  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION AND POLICY  

1.1  Statutory authorization. This buffer ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization and policies 
contained in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, the Buffer Law as amended from time to time, Minn. Stat. §103B.101, 
subdivision 12a, authority to issue penalty orders, and the County planning and zoning enabling 
legislation in Minn. Stat. chapter 394. 

1.2  Purpose and intent. It is the purpose and intent of the County to: 

(a) Provide for riparian vegetated buffers and water quality practices to achieve the following purposes: 
 

(1) Protect state water resources from erosion and runoff pollution; 
(2) Stabilize soils, shores and banks; and 
(3) Protect or provide riparian corridors.  

 
       (b) Coordinate the implementation and enforcement of the water resources riparian protection 

requirements of Minn. Stat. §103F.48 with the shoreland management rules and ordinances adopted 
under the authority of Minn. Stat. §103F.201 to 103F.227 and the management of public drainage 
systems established under Minn. Stat. chapter 103E where applicable; and 

(c) Provide efficient and effective direction to landowners and protection of surface water quality and 
related land resources.  
 

2.0  DEFINITIONS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2.1  Definitions.  Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall be 
interpreted to give them the same meaning they have in common usage and to give this ordinance it’s 
most reasonable application. For the purpose of this ordinance, the words “must” and “shall” are 
mandatory and not permissive. All distances, unless otherwise specified, are measured horizontally. 

 
2.1.1 “APO” means the administrative penalty order issued pursuant to Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 7 

and Minn. Stat. §103B.101, subd. 12a. 

2.1.2 "Buffer" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 1(c).  

2.1.3 "Buffer protection map" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 1(d) and which 
are available on the Department of Natural Resources website. 

2.1.4 “BWSR" means the Board of Water and Soil Resources. 
 
2.1.5 “Cultivation farming” means farming practices that disturb root or soil structure or that impair the 

viability of perennial vegetation due to cutting or harvesting near the soil surface.   

2.1.6 “Drainage authority” has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103E.005, subd. 9.  

2.1.7 “Landowner” means the holder of the fee title, the holder’s agents or assigns, any lessee, licensee, 
or operator of the real property and includes all land occupiers as defined by Minn. Stat. 
§103F.401, subd.  7 or any other party conducting farming activities on or exercising control over 
the real property. 

39



2.1.8 “Parcel” means a unit of real property that has been given a tax identification number maintained 

by the County. 

2.1.9 “Public drainage system" has the meaning given to “drainage system” in Minn. Stat. §103E.005, 

subd. 12.  

 
2.1.10 "Local water management authority" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, Subd. 

1(g). 
 
2.1.11 "Normal water level" means the level evidenced by the long‐term presence of surface water as 

indicated directly by hydrophytic plants or hydric soils or indirectly determined via hydrological 
models or analysis. 

2.1.12 “SWCD” means Soil and Water Conservation District. 

2.1.13 “County” means Swift County and its employees, designees or representatives.   

2.1.14. “Validation of Compliance” means a notice issued by SWCD that validates that a site(s) is 
compliant and that said validation is good as long as all practices identified/documented continue 
to be in place and substantially in the condition  identified at the time of issuance.   Said notice 
shall be in recordable form.   

2.1.15. “Subsequent Initial Noncompliance” means a first incidence of noncompliance occurring on a 
parcel after an incidence of noncompliance has occurred on a different parcel. 

2.2  Severability. If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional or 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected 
thereby. 

2.3   Data sharing/management. 
2.3.1  The County may enter into arrangements with an SWCD, a watershed district if applicable, BWSR 

and other parties with respect to the creation and maintenance of, and access to, data concerning 
buffers and alternative practices under this ordinance. 

2.3.2  The County will manage all such data in accordance with the Minnesota Data Practices Act and 
any other applicable laws. 

 
2.4  Delegation of Enforcement. Nothing herein shall prevent the County from entering into an agreement 

with any other entity, authorized under statutes section 103F.48 to enforce buffer requirements, for the 
enforcement of buffer requirements within its jurisdiction according to this ordinance or other properly 
adopted enforcement rule. The County may delegate certain other functions under this ordinance to the 
SWCD under separate agreement. 

 
2.5  Drainage System Acquisition and Compensation for Buffer. Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the 

acquisition and compensation of grass buffers on public drainage systems pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes chapter 103E. 

 
2.6  Notice.   Any notice or other communication to be provided herein shall be directed to the Landowner 

whose name and address appears on the County’s Property Taxes Records and listed as the taxpayer.   
Notice on said Landowner shall be considered sufficient notice to all those who may be considered a 
Landowner as defined in Section 2.1.7.  

 

   

40



3.0  JURISDICTION 

3.1  Jurisdiction. The provisions of this ordinance apply to all waters, shown on the buffer protection map, 
excluding public drainage systems for which the County is not the drainage authority or a member of 
joint drainage authority under Minn. Stat. chapter 103E, where another enforcement authority has 
elected enforcement jurisdiction. 

4.0  BUFFER REQUIREMENTS  

4.1 Buffer width. Except as provided in subsection 4.4 and 4.5, a landowner owning property adjacent to a 
water body identified on the buffer protection map must establish and maintain a buffer area as follows: 

 
(a) For waters shown on the buffer protection map requiring a fifty (50) foot width buffer, the buffer 
width will be fifty (50) foot average and thirty (30) foot minimum width as provided in Minn. Stat. 
§103F.48, subd. 3 as measured according to subsection 4.2; and 

(b) For waters shown on the buffer protection map requiring a sixteen and a half (16.5) foot minimum 
width buffer, the buffer width will be sixteen and a half (16.5) feet as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, 
subd. 3 and as measured according to subsection 4.2. This subsection applies only if the County is the 
drainage authority. 

4.2 Measurement.  

(a) The width of any  required buffer on land adjacent to a water requiring a fifty (50) foot average width 
and a thirty (30) foot minimum width buffer shall be measured  from the top or crown of the bank. Where 
there is no defined bank, measurement must be from the edge of the normal water level as provided in 
Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3(c). 

(b) The width of any required buffer on land adjacent to a water requiring a sixteen and a half (16.5) foot 
minimum width buffer shall be measured in the same manner as for measuring the vegetated grass strip 
under Minn. Stat. §103E.021, subd. 1 as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3(c). 

4.3 Use of buffer area.  Except as provided in sections 4.4 and 4.5 a buffer as defined in this ordinance may 
not be put to any use, included but not limited to cultivation farming, which would remove or prevent the 
permanent growth of perennial vegetation. 
 

4.4 Exemptions.  The requirement of section 4.1 does not apply to land that is exempted from the water 
resources riparian protection requirements under Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 5. 

 
4.5. Alternative practices.  As provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3(b) an owner of land that is used for 

cultivation farming may demonstrate compliance with subsection 4.1 by establishing and maintaining an 
alternative riparian water quality practice(s), or combination of structural, vegetative, and management 
practice(s) which provide water quality protection comparable to the water quality protection provided 
by a required buffer as defined in sections 4.1 to 4.3. The adequacy of any alternative practice allowed 
under this section shall be based on: 

(a) the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG);  
 
(b) common alternative practices adopted and published by BWSR; 
 
(c) practices based on local conditions approved by the SWCD that are consistent with the Natural 
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG);  or 
 
(d) other practices adopted by BWSR. 
 

41



4.6 Compliance with other statute, ordinance or regulation.  Where the provisions of any statute, other 
ordinance or regulation imposes greater restrictions than this ordinance, the provisions of such statute, 
other ordinance or regulation shall be controlling. 

 
5.0 COMPLIANCE DETERMINATIONS 

 
5.1 Compliance determinations.  Compliance with the buffer requirements set forth in section 4 will be 

determined by the SWCD on a parcel by parcel basis. The compliance status of each bank, or edge of a 
waterbody or watercourse as defined in Section 3.1 on an individual parcel will be determined 
independently.  

 
5.2 Investigation and notification of noncompliance.  When SWCD County identifies a potential 

noncompliance with the buffer requirements or receives a third party complaint from a private individual 
or entity, or from another public agency, it will consult with the County SWCD to determine the 
appropriate course of action to document compliance status.  This may include communication with the 
landowner, inspection or other appropriate steps necessary to verify the compliance status of the parcel.  
On the basis of the evidence gathered in this process, the SWCD may issue a Notification of 
Noncompliance to the County.  If the SWCD does not issue such a Notification, the County will not pursue 
a compliance or enforcement action under Minnesota Statutes §103F.48 and subsection 6.2. If the SWCD 
does issue such a Notification, the SWCD must include, for consideration by the County, a list of corrective 
actions needed to come into compliance with the requirements of Minn. Stat. §103F.48; a recommended 
timeline for completing the corrective actions; and a standard by which the SWCD will judge compliance 
with the requirements of Minn. Stat. §103F.48 after the corrective actions are taken. 

 
At any time during process set forth in 5.2 and 5.3, the landowner may provide documentation of 
compliance to the SWCD.  
 
5.2.1  Compliance determination. The SWCD will evaluate the available documentation, and/or evaluate 

and/or inspect the buffer and/or alternative practices to determine if the parcel is in compliance. 
Upon completion of the evaluation and/or inspection the SWCD shall issue a written compliance 
determination to the landowner, the County and BWSR. The SWCD may also issue a Validation of 
Compliance if applicable and requested by the landowner.    
 

5.3 Corrective Action Notice. On receipt of an SWCD Notification of Noncompliance, the County will issue the 
landowner a Corrective Action Notice that will: 

 
(a) include a list of corrective actions needed to come into compliance with the requirements of Minn. 
Stat. §103F.48; 
 
(b) provide a timeline for completing the corrective actions;  
 
(c) provide the standard by which compliance will be evaluated after the corrective actions are taken; and  
 
(d) include a statement that failure to complete corrective actions and achieve compliance within the 
timeline provided may result in civil or administrative enforcement actions and the assessment of 
administrative penalties. 
 
The County may send the landowner a combined Corrective Action Notice and APO as provided in section 
6.2 so long as the combined Notice/APO includes all the required elements of both.  

 
The County shall transmit the corrective action notice by either personal service to the landowner or by 

42



depositing the same in the U.S. Mail. If service is made by U.S. mail, the document is deemed received 
three business days after the notice was placed in the U.S. mail. Failure of actual receipt of a corrective 
action notice that has either been personally served or served by depositing the same in the U.S. Mail 
shall not be deemed a defense in an enforcement proceeding under section 6.0. The County shall also 
send a copy of the Notice to the SWCD and BWSR. 
 
Counties may modify the corrective actions and timeline for compliance, in accordance with section 5.2, 
to extend the compliance timeline for a modification that imposes a substantial new action or significantly 
accelerates the completion date for an action.  
 
5.3.1   At any time after receipt of a corrective action notice, the landowner may provide documentation 

of compliance to the County. In addition, the landowner may supply information to the County or 
the SWCD in support of a request to modify a corrective action or the timeline for compliance.  On 
the basis of any such submittal or at its own discretion, the County, after consulting the SWCD, 
may make a written modification to the Corrective Action Notice or timeline for compliance. The 
County, upon review and notification by the SWCD, should also make a written determination 
documenting whether the noncompliance has been fully corrected. Any such modification of a 
compliance determination will be served on the landowner in the manner provided for in section 
5.3. The County shall provide the SWCD and BWSR a written copy of any modification made 
pursuant to this provision.  

 
5.3.2   The SWCD may, after an evaluation of the evidence documenting compliance submitted by the 

landowner, issue a written Validation of Compliance if requested by the landowner. Upon receipt 
by the County of a written compliance determination issued by the SWCD, the Corrective Action 
Notice will be deemed withdrawn for the purpose of section 6.0, and the subject property will not 
be subject to enforcement under that section. 

 

6.0 ENFORCEMENT 

6.1 Administrative Penalty. The County may issue an APO as provided for in Minn. Stat. §§103F.48, subd. 7(b) 
and (c) and 103B.101, subdivision 12a to a landowner who has failed to take the corrective action as set forth 
in the corrective action notice. For the APO to be effective it must be served on the landowner together with 
a copy of the corrective action notice or alternatively the County may serve the landowner with a combined 
Corrective Action Notice and APO so long as the combined Notice/APO includes all the elements of both. 
Service is effective either by personal service or by depositing the documents set forth herein in the U.S. Mail. 
Any penalty assessed in the APO shall continue to accrue until the violation is corrected as provided in the 
Corrective Action Notice and APO. 
 
6.2 Administrative Penalty Order (APO). 

 
(a) Initial violation.  The penalty for a landowner on a single parcel that has not previously been issued a 
corrective action notice by the County shall be: 
 

i. $0 for 11 months after issuance of the Corrective Action Notice or during the schedule issued for 
taking correction actions, whichever is greater;  

ii. Up to $2100 per parcel per month for the first six (6) months (180 days) following the time period 
in i ; and 

iii. Up to $5400 per parcel per month after six (6) months (180 days) following the time period in ii. 
 
(b) Repeat violation.  The penalty for a landowner on a single parcel that has previously been issued a 
corrective action notice by the County shall be: 

43



 
i. Up to $2100 per parcel per day for 180 days after issuance of the subsequent Corrective Action 

Notice; and 
ii. Up to $5400 per parcel per day for after 180 days following the time period in i. 

 
(c) Ongoing penalty assessment. Any penalty assessed under this section shall continue until the 

corrective action notice has been satisfied. 
 
6.2.1  Penalty Determination. For administrative penalties imposed by the County, the County shall 

determine the severity of the noncompliance, intentional nature of noncompliance and frequency 
of noncompliance in determining the amount of violation. The amount of an administrative 
penalty will be based on considerations including the extent, gravity and willfulness of the 
noncompliance; its economic benefit to the responsible party; the extent of the responsible 
party’s diligence in addressing it; any noncompliance history; the public costs incurred to address 
the noncompliance; and other factors as justice may require. Upon appropriate findings, the 
County shall use the following table to determining a penalty amount: 

 
Nature of Violation  Severity of Violation 

Minor  Moderate  Substantial 
Initial noncompliance  
(initial term) 

$50  $100  $150 

Initial noncompliance  
(subsequent term) 

$200  $300  $400 

Subsequent initial 
noncompliance (new parcel, 
initial term) 

$100  $150  $200 

Subsequent initial 
noncompliance (new parcel, 
subsequent term) 

$300  $400  $500 

Repeat noncompliance  
(same parcel, initial term) 

$100  $150  $200 

Repeat noncompliance  
(same parcel, subsequent 
term) 

$300  $400  $500 

 
6.2.2 APO.   To be valid the APO shall include, at a minimum: 
 

i. The facts constituting the violation of the riparian protection and water quality practices 

requirements set forth in this section 4.0 of this ordinance or  Minn. Stat. §103F.48 ; 

ii. The specific statute  and/or ordinance section(s) that has/have been violated; 

iii. A written description of  prior efforts to work with the  landowner to resolve the violation; 

iv. The amount of the penalty to be imposed;  

v. The facts supporting the amount of the penalty; 

vi. The date the penalty will begin to accrue; 

vii. The date that payment of the penalty is due;  

viii. The date by which all or part of the penalty may be forgiven if the landowner has/have complied 

with the Corrective Action Notice; and 

ix. A statement of the landowner’s right to appeal the APO. 

 

44



6.2.3 All or part of the penalty may be forgiven based on the correction of the noncompliance by the date 
specified in the APO by the landowner as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 7(d). 

  
6.2.4 A copy of the APO must be sent to the SWCD and BWSR. 
 
6.2.5 An APO issued under this section may be appealed to the BWSR within 30 days of receipt by the 

landowner in accordance with the requirements set for the in  Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 9. Any 
APO that is not appealed within the 30 day period shall be deemed final.  
 

6.3 Administrative Penalty Order Procedures 
 

6.3.1 Statute of limitations.  Any administrative enforcement proceeding including the issuance of an 
APO should be undertaken within three years after the alleged violations was discovered or 
reasonably should have been discovered by the SWCD. According to Minn. Stat. §541.07, the County 
has two years in which to commence an APO action after the date the violation is discovered. The 
goal is to complete the action as soon as reasonably practical, recognizing that situations for which 
data must be gathered, field investigations must be completed and/or modeling must be performed 
will require adequate time to complete the work and communicate with the landowner involved. 
 
6.3.2 Compliance verification.   Once a landowner has provided notice and submitted written 
evidence of correction of the violation set forth in the notice of compliance, compliance must be 
verified. The County will refer the landowner’s evidence and notice to the SWCD to: 

 
i. Review and evaluate all information related to the corrective action notice or APO to 

determine if the violation has been corrected; 
ii. Verify compliance by site visit, re‐inspection, examination of documentation, or other means 

as may be reasonable under the facts of the case; and 
iii. Document compliance verification. 

The SWCD may consult with the County when conducting a compliance verification. 
 
6.3.3 Right to appeal.  Within 30 days after receipt of the APO, a landowner may appeal the terms and 
conditions of an APO issued by a County to BWSR as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 9. The 
appeal must be in writing and must include a copy of the APO that is being appealed, the basis for the 
appeal and any supporting evidence. The appeal may be submitted personally, by U.S. mail, or 
electronically, to the Executive Director of BWSR.  
 
6.3.4 Penalty due.  Unless the landowner appeals the APO as provided in section 6.3.3 the penalty 
specified in the APO becomes immediately due and payable to the County as set forth in the APO. If, 
however, the landowner  submits written documentation that the violations has been corrected prior 
to the time the penalty becomes due and payable  the County shall verify compliance and adjust the 
penalty to an amount the landowner would have owed had the penalty been paid on the date the 
landowner submitted written documentation of compliance. Written documentation of compliance 
may include a written validation of compliance issued by the SWCD.  
 
However, if the County determines the violation was not fully corrected, the County shall notify the 
landowner by issuing a written letter of determination and depositing it in the U.S. Mail. Any 
determination sent by U.S. Mail shall be deemed received three business days after the letter of 
determination has been deposited in the U.S. Mail. The landowner shall have an additional 20 days 
after receipt of the letter of determination to pay the penalty or the time period specified in the APO 
as issued, whichever is later. The penalty will continue to accrue until the violation is corrected as 

45



provided in the Corrective Action Notice and APO. 
 
6.3.5 Referral for collection of penalty.  All penalties and interest assessed under an APO must be paid 
by the landowner. All payments shall be made payable to the County. Any penalty or interest not 
received in the specified time may be collected by the County using any lawful means, including, if 
lawful, recovery by additional property tax or by recording a lien against the property.  
 
6.3.6 Reporting and documentation. The SWCD County shall maintain the following records for any 
potential violation of the riparian protection and water quality practices requirements. Said records 
shall include but are not limited to the following: 

 
iv. The cause of the violation; 
v. The magnitude and duration of the violation; 
vi. Documentation showing whether the violation presents an actual or imminent risk to public 

health and safety; 
vii. Documentation showing whether the violation has the potential to harm to the natural 

resources of the state; 
viii. A record of past violations;  
ix. Efforts by the SWCD, County, Watershed District or BWSR to assist the responsible party or 

parties  to become compliant, including written and oral communications with the 
responsible party or parties ; and 

x. Past and present corrective action efforts by the responsible party or parties. 
 

46



 
SWIFT COUNTY BUFFER ENFORCEMENT ORDINANCE PURSUANT TO STATUTES SECTION 103F.48 

 

 

1.0  STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION AND POLICY  

1.1  Statutory authorization. This buffer ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization and policies 
contained in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, the Buffer Law as amended from time to time, Minn. Stat. §103B.101, 
subdivision 12a, authority to issue penalty orders, and the County planning and zoning enabling 
legislation in Minn. Stat. chapter 394. 

1.2  Purpose and intent. It is the purpose and intent of the County to: 

(a) Provide for riparian vegetated buffers and water quality practices to achieve the following purposes: 
 

(1) Protect state water resources from erosion and runoff pollution; 
(2) Stabilize soils, shores and banks; and 
(3) Protect or provide riparian corridors.  

 
       (b) Coordinate the implementation and enforcement of the water resources riparian protection 

requirements of Minn. Stat. §103F.48 with the shoreland management rules and ordinances adopted 
under the authority of Minn. Stat. §103F.201 to 103F.227 and the management of public drainage 
systems established under Minn. Stat. chapter 103E where applicable; and 

(c) Provide efficient and effective direction to landowners and protection of surface water quality and 
related land resources.  
 

2.0  DEFINITIONS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2.1  Definitions.  Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall be 
interpreted to give them the same meaning they have in common usage and to give this ordinance it’s 
most reasonable application. For the purpose of this ordinance, the words “must” and “shall” are 
mandatory and not permissive. All distances, unless otherwise specified, are measured horizontally. 

 
2.1.1 “APO” means the administrative penalty order issued pursuant to Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 7 

and Minn. Stat. §103B.101, subd. 12a. 

2.1.2 "Buffer" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 1(c).  

2.1.3 "Buffer protection map" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 1(d) and which 
are available on the Department of Natural Resources website. 

2.1.4 “BWSR" means the Board of Water and Soil Resources. 
 
2.1.5 “Cultivation farming” means farming practices that disturb root or soil structure or that impair the 

viability of perennial vegetation due to cutting or harvesting near the soil surface.   

2.1.6 “Drainage authority” has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103E.005, subd. 9.  

2.1.7 “Landowner” means the holder of the fee title, the holder’s agents or assigns, any lessee, licensee, 
or operator of the real property and includes all land occupiers as defined by Minn. Stat. 
§103F.401, subd.  7 or any other party conducting farming activities on or exercising control over 
the real property. 

47



2.1.8 “Parcel” means a unit of real property that has been given a tax identification number maintained 

by the County. 

2.1.9 “Public drainage system" has the meaning given to “drainage system” in Minn. Stat. §103E.005, 

subd. 12.  

 
2.1.10 "Local water management authority" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, Subd. 

1(g). 
 
2.1.11 "Normal water level" means the level evidenced by the long‐term presence of surface water as 

indicated directly by hydrophytic plants or hydric soils or indirectly determined via hydrological 
models or analysis. 

2.1.12 “SWCD” means Soil and Water Conservation District. 

2.1.13 “County” means Swift County and its employees, designees or representatives.   

2.1.14. “Validation of Compliance” means a notice issued by SWCD that validates that a site(s) is 
compliant and that said validation is good as long as all practices identified/documented continue 
to be in place and substantially in the condition  identified at the time of issuance.   Said notice 
shall be in recordable form.   

2.2  Severability. If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional or 
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected 
thereby. 

2.3 Data sharing/management. 
2.3.1  The County may enter into arrangements with an SWCD, a watershed district if applicable, BWSR 

and other parties with respect to the creation and maintenance of, and access to, data concerning 
buffers and alternative practices under this ordinance. 

2.3.2  The County will manage all such data in accordance with the Minnesota Data Practices Act and 
any other applicable laws. 

 
2.4  Delegation of Enforcement. Nothing herein shall prevent the County from entering into an agreement 

with any other entity, authorized under statutes section 103F.48 to enforce buffer requirements, for the 
enforcement of buffer requirements within its jurisdiction according to this ordinance or other properly 
adopted enforcement rule. The County may delegate certain other functions under this ordinance to the 
SWCD under separate agreement. 

 
2.5  Drainage System Acquisition and Compensation for Buffer. Nothing in this ordinance shall prevent the 

acquisition and compensation of grass buffers on public drainage systems pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes chapter 103E. 

 
2.6  Notice.   Any notice or other communication to be provided herein shall be directed to the Landowner 

whose name and address appears on the County’s Property Taxes Records and listed as the taxpayer.   
Notice on said Landowner shall be considered sufficient notice to all those who may be considered a 
Landowner as defined in Section 2.1.7.  

 

   

48



3.0  JURISDICTION 

3.1  Jurisdiction. The provisions of this ordinance apply to all waters, shown on the buffer protection map, 
excluding public drainage systems for which the County is not the drainage authority or a member of 
joint drainage authority under Minn. Stat. chapter 103E, where another enforcement authority has 
elected enforcement jurisdiction. 

4.0  BUFFER REQUIREMENTS  

4.1 Buffer width. Except as provided in subsection 4.4 and 4.5, a landowner owning property adjacent to a 
water body identified on the buffer protection map must establish and maintain a buffer area as follows: 

 
(a) For waters shown on the buffer protection map requiring a fifty (50) foot width buffer, the buffer 
width will be fifty (50) foot average and thirty (30) foot minimum width as provided in Minn. Stat. 
§103F.48, subd. 3 as measured according to subsection 4.2; and 

(b) For waters shown on the buffer protection map requiring a sixteen and a half (16.5) foot minimum 
width buffer, the buffer width will be sixteen and a half (16.5) feet as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, 
subd. 3 and as measured according to subsection 4.2. This subsection applies only if the County is the 
drainage authority. 

4.2 Measurement.  

(a) The width of any required buffer on land adjacent to a water requiring a fifty (50) foot average width 
and a thirty (30) foot minimum width buffer shall be measured  from the top or crown of the bank. Where 
there is no defined bank, measurement must be from the edge of the normal water level as provided in 
Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3(c). 

(b) The width of any required buffer on land adjacent to a water requiring a sixteen and a half (16.5) foot 
minimum width buffer shall be measured in the same manner as for measuring the vegetated grass strip 
under Minn. Stat. §103E.021, subd. 1 as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3(c). 

4.3 Use of buffer area.  Except as provided in sections 4.4 and 4.5 a buffer as defined in this ordinance may 
not be put to any use, included but not limited to cultivation farming, which would remove or prevent the 
permanent growth of perennial vegetation. 
 

4.4 Exemptions.  The requirement of section 4.1 does not apply to land that is exempted from the water 
resources riparian protection requirements under Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 5. 

 
4.5. Alternative practices.  As provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3(b) an owner of land that is used for 

cultivation farming may demonstrate compliance with subsection 4.1 by establishing and maintaining an 
alternative riparian water quality practice(s), or combination of structural, vegetative, and management 
practice(s) which provide water quality protection comparable to the water quality protection provided 
by a required buffer as defined in sections 4.1 to 4.3. The adequacy of any alternative practice allowed 
under this section shall be based on: 

(a) the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG);  
 
(b) common alternative practices adopted and published by BWSR; 
 
(c) practices based on local conditions approved by the SWCD that are consistent with the Natural 
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG);  or 
 
(d) other practices adopted by BWSR. 
 

49



4.6 Compliance with other statute, ordinance or regulation.  Where the provisions of any statute, other 
ordinance or regulation imposes greater restrictions than this ordinance, the provisions of such statute, 
other ordinance or regulation shall be controlling. 

 
5.0 COMPLIANCE DETERMINATIONS 

 
5.1 Compliance determinations.  Compliance with the buffer requirements set forth in section 4 will be 

determined by the SWCD on a parcel by parcel basis. The compliance status of each bank, or edge of a 
waterbody or watercourse as defined in Section 3.1 on an individual parcel will be determined 
independently.  

 
5.2 Investigation and notification of noncompliance.  When County identifies a potential noncompliance with 

the buffer requirements or receives a third party complaint from a private individual or entity, or from 
another public agency, it will consult with the SWCD to determine the appropriate course of action to 
document compliance status.  This may include communication with the landowner, inspection or other 
appropriate steps necessary to verify the compliance status of the parcel.  On the basis of the evidence 
gathered in this process, the SWCD may issue a Notification of Noncompliance to the County.  If the 
SWCD does not issue such a Notification, the County will not pursue a compliance or enforcement action 
under Minnesota Statutes §103F.48 and subsection 6.2.  

 
At any time during process set forth in 5.2 and 5.3, the landowner may provide documentation of 
compliance to the SWCD.  
 
5.2.1  Compliance determination. The SWCD will evaluate the available documentation, and/or evaluate 

and/or inspect the buffer and/or alternative practices to determine if the parcel is in compliance. 
Upon completion of the evaluation and/or inspection the SWCD shall issue a written compliance 
determination to the landowner, the County and BWSR. The SWCD may also issue a Validation of 
Compliance if applicable and requested by the landowner.    
 

5.3 Corrective Action Notice. On receipt of an SWCD Notification of Noncompliance, the County will issue the 
landowner a Corrective Action Notice that will: 

 
(a) include a list of corrective actions needed to come into compliance with the requirements of Minn. 
Stat. §103F.48; 
 
(b) provide a timeline for completing the corrective actions;  
 
(c) provide the standard by which compliance will be evaluated after the corrective actions are taken; and  
 
(d) include a statement that failure to complete corrective actions and achieve compliance within the 
timeline provided may result in civil or administrative enforcement actions and the assessment of 
administrative penalties. 
 
The County may send the landowner a combined Corrective Action Notice and APO as provided in section 
6.2 so long as the combined Notice/APO includes all the required elements of both.  

 
The County shall transmit the corrective action notice by either personal service to the landowner or by 
depositing the same in the U.S. Mail. If service is made by U.S. mail, the document is deemed received 
three business days after the notice was placed in the U.S. mail. Failure of actual receipt of a corrective 
action notice that has either been personally served or served by depositing the same in the U.S. Mail 
shall not be deemed a defense in an enforcement proceeding under section 6.0. The County shall also 

50



send a copy of the Notice to the SWCD and BWSR. 
 
Counties may modify the corrective actions and timeline for compliance, in accordance with section 5.2, 
to extend the compliance timeline for a modification that imposes a substantial new action or significantly 
accelerates the completion date for an action.  
 
5.3.1   At any time after receipt of a corrective action notice, the landowner may provide documentation 

of compliance to the County. In addition, the landowner may supply information to the County or 
the SWCD in support of a request to modify a corrective action or the timeline for compliance.  On 
the basis of any such submittal or at its own discretion, the County, after consulting the SWCD, 
may make a written modification to the Corrective Action Notice or timeline for compliance. The 
County, upon review and notification by the SWCD, should also make a written determination 
documenting whether the noncompliance has been fully corrected. Any such modification of a 
compliance determination will be served on the landowner in the manner provided for in section 
5.3. The County shall provide the SWCD and BWSR a written copy of any modification made 
pursuant to this provision.  

 
5.3.2   The SWCD may, after an evaluation of the evidence documenting compliance submitted by the 

landowner, issue a written Validation of Compliance if requested by the landowner. Upon receipt 
by the County of a written compliance determination issued by the SWCD, the Corrective Action 
Notice will be deemed withdrawn for the purpose of section 6.0, and the subject property will not 
be subject to enforcement under that section. 

 

6.0 ENFORCEMENT 

6.1 Administrative Penalty. The County may issue an APO as provided for in Minn. Stat. §§103F.48, subd. 7(b) 
and (c) and 103B.101, subdivision 12a to a landowner who has failed to take the corrective action as set forth 
in the corrective action notice. For the APO to be effective it must be served on the landowner together with 
a copy of the corrective action notice or alternatively the County may serve the landowner with a combined 
Corrective Action Notice and APO so long as the combined Notice/APO includes all the elements of both. 
Service is effective either by personal service or by depositing the documents set forth herein in the U.S. Mail. 
Any penalty assessed in the APO shall continue to accrue until the violation is corrected as provided in the 
Corrective Action Notice and APO. 
 
6.2 Administrative Penalty Order (APO). 

 
(a) Initial violation.  The penalty for a landowner on a single parcel that has not previously been issued a 
corrective action notice by the County shall be: 
 

i. $0 for 11 months after issuance of the Corrective Action Notice or during the schedule issued for 
taking correction actions, whichever is greater;  

ii. $100 per parcel per month for the first six (6) months (180 days) following the time period in i ; 
and 

iii. $200 per parcel per month after six (6) months (180 days) following the time period in ii. 
 
(b) Repeat violation.  The penalty for a landowner on a single parcel that has previously been issued a 
corrective action notice by the County shall be: 
 

i. $100 per parcel per day for 180 days after issuance of the subsequent Corrective Action Notice; 
and 

ii. $200 per parcel per day for after 180 days following the time period in i. 

51



 
(c) Ongoing penalty assessment. Any penalty assessed under this section shall continue until the 

corrective action notice has been satisfied. 
 
6.2.1  Penalty Determination. For administrative penalties imposed by the County, the County shall 

determine the severity of the noncompliance, intentional nature of noncompliance and frequency 
of noncompliance in determining the amount of violation. The amount of an administrative 
penalty will be based on considerations including the extent, gravity and willfulness of the 
noncompliance; its economic benefit to the responsible party; the extent of the responsible 
party’s diligence in addressing it; any noncompliance history; the public costs incurred to address 
the noncompliance; and other factors as justice may require. Upon appropriate findings, the 
County shall use the following table to determining a penalty amount: 

 
6.2.2 APO.   To be valid the APO shall include, at a minimum: 
 

i. The facts constituting the violation of the riparian protection and water quality practices 

requirements set forth in this section 4.0 of this ordinance or  Minn. Stat. §103F.48 ; 

ii. The specific statute  and/or ordinance section(s) that has/have been violated; 

iii. A written description of  prior efforts to work with the  landowner to resolve the violation; 

iv. The amount of the penalty to be imposed;  

v. The facts supporting the amount of the penalty; 

vi. The date the penalty will begin to accrue; 

vii. The date that payment of the penalty is due;  

viii. The date by which all or part of the penalty may be forgiven if the landowner has/have complied 

with the Corrective Action Notice; and 

ix. A statement of the landowner’s right to appeal the APO. 

 

6.2.3 All or part of the penalty may be forgiven based on the correction of the noncompliance by the date 
specified in the APO by the landowner as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 7(d). 

  
6.2.4 A copy of the APO must be sent to the SWCD and BWSR. 
 
6.2.5 An APO issued under this section may be appealed to the BWSR within 30 days of receipt by the 

landowner in accordance with the requirements set for the in  Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 9. Any 
APO that is not appealed within the 30 day period shall be deemed final.  
 

6.3 Administrative Penalty Order Procedures 
 

6.3.1 Statute of limitations.  According to Minn. Stat. §541.07, the County has two years in which to 
commence an APO action after the date the violation is discovered. The goal is to complete the action 
as soon as reasonably practical, recognizing that situations for which data must be gathered, field 
investigations must be completed and/or modeling must be performed will require adequate time to 
complete the work and communicate with the landowner involved. 
 
6.3.2 Compliance verification.   Once a landowner has provided notice and submitted written 
evidence of correction of the violation set forth in the notice of compliance, compliance must be 
verified. The County will refer the landowner’s evidence and notice to the SWCD to: 

 
i. Review and evaluate all information related to the corrective action notice or APO to 

determine if the violation has been corrected; 

52



ii. Verify compliance by site visit, re‐inspection, examination of documentation, or other means 
as may be reasonable under the facts of the case; and 

iii. Document compliance verification. 

The SWCD may consult with the County when conducting a compliance verification. 
 
6.3.3 Right to appeal.  Within 30 days after receipt of the APO, a landowner may appeal the terms and 
conditions of an APO issued by a County to BWSR as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 9. The 
appeal must be in writing and must include a copy of the APO that is being appealed, the basis for the 
appeal and any supporting evidence. The appeal may be submitted personally, by U.S. mail, or 
electronically, to the Executive Director of BWSR.  
 
6.3.4 Penalty due.  Unless the landowner appeals the APO as provided in section 6.3.3 the penalty 
specified in the APO becomes immediately due and payable to the County as set forth in the APO. If, 
however, the landowner  submits written documentation that the violations has been corrected prior 
to the time the penalty becomes due and payable  the County shall verify compliance and adjust the 
penalty to an amount the landowner would have owed had the penalty been paid on the date the 
landowner submitted written documentation of compliance. Written documentation of compliance 
may include a written validation of compliance issued by the SWCD.  
 
However, if the County determines the violation was not fully corrected, the County shall notify the 
landowner by issuing a written letter of determination and depositing it in the U.S. Mail. Any 
determination sent by U.S. Mail shall be deemed received three business days after the letter of 
determination has been deposited in the U.S. Mail. The landowner shall have an additional 20 days 
after receipt of the letter of determination to pay the penalty or the time period specified in the APO 
as issued, whichever is later. The penalty will continue to accrue until the violation is corrected as 
provided in the Corrective Action Notice and APO. 
 
6.3.5 Referral for collection of penalty.  All penalties and interest assessed under an APO must be paid 
by the landowner. All payments shall be made payable to the County. Any penalty or interest not 
received in the specified time may be collected by the County using any lawful means, including, if 
lawful, recovery by additional property tax or by recording a lien against the property.  
 
6.3.6 Reporting and documentation. The County shall maintain the following records for any potential 
violation of the riparian protection and water quality practices requirements. Said records shall 
include but are not limited to the following: 

 
iv. The cause of the violation; 
v. The magnitude and duration of the violation; 
vi. Documentation showing whether the violation presents an actual or imminent risk to public 

health and safety; 
vii. Documentation showing whether the violation has the potential to harm to the natural 

resources of the state; 
viii. A record of past violations;  
ix. Efforts by the SWCD, County, Watershed District or BWSR to assist the responsible party or 

parties  to become compliant, including written and oral communications with the 
responsible party or parties ; and 

x. Past and present corrective action efforts by the responsible party or parties. 
 

53



 

Request for Board Action 
  BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services  Catie Lee  320‐843‐6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Letter of support to Southwestern Minnesota Adult Mental Health Consortium Grant application 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT?

Regular board  Yes 
IS THIS MANDATED?  EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Yes  County Board action needs to be taken to 
approve support for the SW MN Adult MH 
Consortium 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Southwestern Minnesota Adult Mental Health Consortium is requesting a letter of support for a DHS 
Innovation Grant application. The grant will be used to develop services in our area to meet the 
“return to competency” requirements, which potentially can save county money for those under 
commitment. 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING:  Provides funding for MH screenings for CW and JJ 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY:  COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR:

Danielle Olson  Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  RECOMMENDATIONS:

Click here to enter text.   
COMMENTS:  COMMENTS:

n/a  Click here to enter text. 
 

54



‐ An Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer ‐ 

 

 
410 21st Street South 
P.O. Box 208 
Benson, MN 56215-0208 
(320) 843-3160 
Fax: (320) 843-4582 
 
 
December 19, 2017 

 

Attention: Amanda Calmbacher 

Mental Health Division  

Department of Human Services 

444 Lafayette Road North 

St. Paul, MN 55115 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I am writing this letter on behalf of Swift to show support to the Southwestern Minnesota Adult 

Mental Health Consortium in their Innovation Grant application. 

This opportunity will afford our region to improve outpatient services and will add to the 

region’s continuum of care.  

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Eric Rudningen 

Board Chair 

 

Catie Lee, 
Director

55



 

Request for Board Action 
  BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Human Services  Catie Lee  320‐843‐6301 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Child Welfare/Juvenile Justice Screening Grant 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT?

Regular board  Yes 
IS THIS MANDATED?  EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Yes  County Board action needs to be taken to review 
and approve the Grant Contract 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Swift County has been allocated $20,105 for CY 2018 by the Department of Human Services (DHS) for 
child welfare and juvenile justice mental health screening. DHS requires that the county board 
formally accept the grant and the conditions identified in the grant contract. On 11/30/2017 Swift 
County Human Services received notification from DHS that they will be requiring county board or 
joint powers acceptance of screening grant approval and signature prior to the disbursement of 
children’s mental health screening CY2018 funds. 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING:  Provides funding for MH screenings for CW and JJ 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY:  COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR:

Danielle Olson  Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  RECOMMENDATIONS:

Click here to enter text.   
COMMENTS:  COMMENTS:

n/a  Click here to enter text. 
 

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



Out of Home Placement Data 1/2012-11/2017 

 

 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Placement Costs 2015-2017(current month)

2015 2016 2017

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

$70,000.00

$80,000.00

$90,000.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Cost Per Type of Placement 2016

CFC Grp Res Correction Detention

Ext. FC MH Residential Total

67



 

 

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Cost Per Type of Placement 2017

CFC Grp Res Correction Detention

Ext. FC MH Res Total

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Total Placements/MO/YR

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

68



 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Child Protection Placements by Month and Year

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Placements for Behavior/Mental Health

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

69



 

 

 

 

 

 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

Other OOHP (Deliquency, Truancy, CD)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

70



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTS

MONTH ENDING NOVEMBER 31
2017

HUMAN SERVICES
Receipts  

Beginning Balance $1,459,113.71

Current Month Receipts  $289,688.33

Tax Settlement  $1,134,615.48

Investments  $200,000.00

Interest on Investments $1,253.89

 

Total Receipts $3,084,671.41

Disbursements
Current Month Disbursements $373,100.88

Investments $200,000.00

Total Disbursements $573,100.88

Ending Fund Balance $2,511,570.53

ENDING FUND BALANCE SUMMARY:
2016 2017

Checking Balance $1,134,683.94 $1,111,570.53

Investments $922,000.00 $1,400,000.00

  

Ending Cash Balance $2,056,683.94 $2,511,570.53

INVESTMENT REPORT

BANK TYPE OF ACCOUNT MAT. DATE INT. RATE AMOUNT
Marlin Business Bank 1 Yr CD 01/05/18 1.00% 100,000.00$    

Bankers Bank 1 Yr CD 01/11/18 1.00% 100,000.00$    

MAGIC Fund 1 Yr CD 01/18/18 1.11% 50,000.00$      

Washington Federal 6 Month CD 02/12/18 1.30% 100,000.00$    

Compass Bank 9 Month CD 04/16/18 1.35% 200,000.00$    

Community Financial 9 Month CD 05/11/18 1.35% 200,000.00$    

Bank of Baroda 1 Yr CD 07/13/18 1.45% 150,000.00$    

1st National Omaha 1 Year CD 08/15/18 1.50% 200,000.00$    

Bank of Bridger 1 Year CD 09/28/18 1.45% 100,000.00$    

Whitney Gulfport 1 Yr CD 11/29/18 1.50% 200,000.00$    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 1,400,000.00$ 

71



Swift County Human Services
Ending Monthly Cash & Investment Balances

2008 - 2017

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Average
Jan 1,061,936$     1,039,335$        1,116,112$     1,027,808$     977,091$         909,780$        846,281$       983,278$       933,563$            1,668,733$         $1,056,392
Feb 980,137$        951,620$           1,069,918$     1,004,522$     829,326$         788,543$        739,793$       882,373$       886,577$            1,562,756$         $969,557
Mar 783,046$        772,024$           810,381$        848,432$        551,477$         576,608$        601,437$       593,206$       636,635$            1,278,985$         $745,223
Apr 703,949$        658,915$           732,868$        820,387$        328,272$         451,920$        446,379$       168,803$       352,306$            1,085,797$         $574,960
May 609,380$        474,455$           576,849$        669,878$        329,407$         300,099$        269,118$       187,841$       289,965$            804,645$            $451,164
Jun 1,272,945$     1,247,245$        1,244,642$     1,460,435$     1,218,863$      1,145,907$     1,361,018$    1,187,485$    1,476,200$         2,165,333$         $1,378,007
Jul 1,225,126$     1,188,516$        1,349,636$     1,142,375$     1,113,725$      1,094,712$     1,165,952$    1,217,022$    1,483,669$         2,160,790$         $1,314,152
Aug 1,033,020$     1,179,585$        1,237,374$     1,228,978$     894,462$         982,736$        1,199,826$    1,126,524$    1,532,984$         1,995,009$         $1,241,050
Sep 965,612$        948,233$           1,085,187$     1,079,263$     804,086$         714,174$        921,407$       877,167$       1,220,833$         1,650,293$         $1,026,626
Oct 843,175$        832,082$           878,408$        773,615$        538,645$         627,339$        667,331$       646,265$       1,028,981$         1,459,114$         $829,496
Nov 754,668$        770,517$           826,623$        741,489$        483,013$         377,803$        477,198$       513,740$       2,056,684$         2,511,571$         $951,331
Dec 1,248,758$     1,279,288$        1,279,178$     1,242,733$     1,094,736$      1,057,825$     1,180,113$    1,187,268$    1,888,413$         $1,273,146

Average 956,813$        945,151$           1,017,265$     1,003,326$     763,592$         752,287$        822,988$       797,581$       1,148,901$         1,667,548$         

$0
$200,000
$400,000
$600,000
$800,000

$1,000,000
$1,200,000
$1,400,000
$1,600,000

Average Monthly Cash & Investment Balance
2008-2017

72



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Administration Kelsey Baker 320-314-8399 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Review the final 2018 Budgets and Levies for the County, HRA, and RDA and consider the following 
actions: 
    1.  Consider approving a resolution on the 2018 Budget and Levy for the County 
    2.  Consider approving a resolution on the 2018 Budget and Levy for the HRA 
    3.  Consider approving a resolution on the 2018 Budget and Levy for the RDA 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Other Business No 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Yes The County Board is required to approve final 
levies and budgets prior to December 30. 

BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

The attached budget is substantially similar to the preliminary budget approved by the board in 
September other than the items discussed at the December 6th Board meeting.  This breakdown is 
attached.  The net effect of all these changes is an increase in expenses of $63,822.  No changes were 
made to the levy. 
 
The overall final net levy increase between 2017 and 2018 is 2.0%.  The proposed 2018 budget 
contains revenues of $21,030,850 and expenditures of $21,163,639.  Of the $21,030,850 in revenue, 
$10,398,870 is proposed net property taxes and $540,981 is expected in County Program Aids (CPA) 
for a total 2018 levy of $10,939,851. The remaining revenues are from user fees, federal & state 
reimbursements, and the solid waste assessment.  The 2018 levy is proposed to be distributed as 
follows: 
 

Revenue $    5,735,834 

Road and Bridge $    2,052,248 

Human Services $    3,020,125 

Library $       131,644 

Solid Waste $                  0 

Total Final Gross Levy $   10,939,851 
 
The RDA levy is proposed to be $97,000 in 2018 while the HRA is proposed to be $90,000.  
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

None 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: These actions set the 2018 final budget and levies for the County, HRA, and RDA.  
 

  

73



Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Was not submitted for review Approve 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

n/a None 
 

74



RESOLUTION  

ADOPTING FINAL SWIFT COUNTY 

2018 BUDGET & LEVY 

 

Motion by Commissioner ______________   Seconded by Commissioner ______________ 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to statute and rule of the Minnesota Department of Revenue, the County’s 2018 

Final Budget and Levy must be adopted by December 29, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Swift County Board of Commissioner held its Truth-In-Taxation Public Hearing on 

December 6, 2017 at 6:00 pm in the City of Benson, MN - Council Chambers. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Swift County Board of Commissioners hereby adopts 

its 2018 final budget, dated December 19, 2017 and attached hereto as Appendix A revenues of 

$21,030,850 and expenditures of $21,163,639. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the 2018 levy be set as follows: 

 

Revenue $    5,735,834 

Road and Bridge $    2,052,248 

Human Services $    3,020,125 

Library $       131,644 

Solid Waste $                  0 

Total Final Gross Levy $   10,939,851 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the final levy payable in 2018 be set as follows: 

 

Gross Levy  $      10,939,851 

CPA  $           540,981 

Operating Levy  $      10,398,870  

 

  

Adopted on a ____________ vote by the Swift County Board of County Commissioners the 19th 

day of December 2017. 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 

 

__________________________________ 

Eric Rudningen, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator  

 

Fox  __   Hendrickx  __   E. Pederson  __ 

P. Peterson __   Rudningen __ 

 

75



RESOLUTION  

 

CONSENTING TO THE SPECIAL BENEFIT TAX FOR 

THE SWIFT COUNTY RURAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

 

Motion by Commissioner ______________        Seconded by Commissioner ______________ 

 

WHEREAS, the Swift County Rural Development Authority (RDA) desires to levy such a 

special benefit tax in the amount of $97,000, within the RDA’s area of operation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the levy of such a special benefit tax is subject to the consent of the Board of 

Commissioners of Swift County, Minnesota; and 

 

WHEREAS, the RDA is also required to, in connection with the levy of such a special benefit 

tax, formulate and file a budget in accordance with the budget procedure of the County in the 

same manner as required of the executive departments of the County, and the amount of the tax 

levy for the following year shall be based on that budget and approved by the Board of 

Commissioners of Swift County; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Swift County, 

Minnesota hereby accepts the 2018 budget and consents to the levy of a special benefit tax for 

taxes payable in 2018 within the Authority’s taxing jurisdiction in the amount of $97,000. 

 

Adopted on a ____________ vote by the Swift County Board of County Commissioners the 

19th day of December 2017. 

 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 

 

__________________________________ 

Eric Rudningen, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

 

Fox  __   Hendrickx  __   E. Pederson  __ 

P. Peterson __   Rudningen __ 

 
 

76



 

 

RESOLUTION  

APPROVING THE AUTHORIZATION OF THE SPECIAL BENEFIT TAX 

PURSUANT TO MINNESOTA STATUTES 469.033, SUBD.6 FOR 

THE HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF SWIFT COUNTY, MN 

 

Motion by Commissioner ______________        Seconded by Commissioner ______________ 

 

WHEREAS, the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of Swift County, Minnesota (the HRA) 

was created by the Swift County Board of Commissioners pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 469.004; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such action, the HRA was granted all powers and duties of a Housing 

and Redevelopment Authority under the provisions of the Municipal Housing and 

Redevelopment Act, Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.001 to 469.047 ( formally 462.411-

462.711) (“The Act”) and 

 

WHEREAS, the HRA desires to levy such a special benefit tax in the amount of $90,000 which 

is less than 0.0185% of taxable market value upon all taxable property, both real and personal, 

within the HRA”s area of operation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the levy of such a special benefit tax is subject to the consent of the Board of 

Commissioners of Swift County, Minnesota; and 

 

WHEREAS, the HRA is also required pursuant to Section 469.033, Subd. 6, of the Act to, in 

connection with the levy of such a special benefit tax, formulate and file a budget in accordance 

with the budget procedure of the County in the same manner as required of the executive 

departments of the County, and the amount of the tax levy for the following year shall be based 

on that budget and approved by the Board Commissioners of Swift County; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Swift County, 

Minnesota hereby accepts the 2018 budget and consents to the levy of a special benefit tax for 

taxes payable in 2018 within the Authority’s taxing jurisdiction in the amount of $90,000 for 

purposes outlined and authorized by Minnesota Statutes 469.001 to 469.047, but in no case shall 

the dollar levy for the HRA exceed the limitations prescribed by Minnesota Statutes, Section 

469.027 to 469.033. 

 

Adopted on a ____________ vote by the Swift County Board of County Commissioners the 

19th day of December 2017. 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 

 

__________________________________ 

Eric Rudningen, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 

 

Fox  __   Hendrickx  __   E. Pederson  __ 

P. Peterson __   Rudningen __ 

 

77



 

Request for Board Action 
 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Administration Kelsey Baker 320-314-8399 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Consider setting 2018 Commissioner salaries and schedule of per diem   
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Other Business No 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

No n/a 
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

The Board is required to annually set Commissioner salaries and schedule of per diems prior to 
December 31st of each year. 
 
For 2017 the Commissioner salaries and per diems were set as follows: 
$19,905 Commissioner 
$20,405 Chair (Commissioner salary plus $500.00) 
$70.00 per meeting (maximum 1 per diem per day) 
 
The approved wage increase for the contract that is settled is effectively 2.0% for 2018. 
 
A 2.0% increase in Commissioner salaries would be as follows: 
$20,303 Commissioner 
$20,803 Chair (Commissioner salary plus $500.00) 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

None 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING: This increase is planned in the 2018 budget 
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Was not submitted for review Review and take an action 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

n/a None 
 

78



RESOLUTION 
SETTING SWIFT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SALARIES FOR 2018 

 
Motion by Commissioner      Seconded by Commissioner  _____________ 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statue § 375.055 requires the Commission to set the salary and 
schedule of per diem for the Commission annually. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Swift County, 
set the Commission salaries and schedule of per diem for 2018 is as follows: 
 
  Chair    $ ___________ 
  Other Commissioners  $ ___________ 
  
  Per diem   $ 70.00  per meeting (maximum 1 per diem per day) 
 

Adopted on a ___________vote by the Swift County Board of County Commissioners the 19th 
day of December 2017. 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Eric Rudningen, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Kelsey Baker, County Administrator 
 
 
Fox  __   Hendrickx  __   E. Pederson  __ 
P. Peterson __   Rudningen __ 

 

79



 2018  BOARD  REPRESENTATION

COMMITTEE/GROUP REPRESENTATIVE DAY OF MEETING MEETING TIME PLACE

BOARD  COMMITTEES:
Policy Committee Peterson As needed 10:30 a.m. Board Room

Rudningen

Technology Committee Rudningen 4th Friday 9:00 a.m. Board Room

Personnel Committee Hendrickx Mon after 1st Tue 10:00 a.m. Board Room

Rudningen

Solid Waste Committee Peterson As needed 9:00 a.m. Enivron Ser.

Fox

Building Committee Peterson As needed 9:00 a.m. Board Room

Rudningen

Health Insurace Committee Hendrickx As needed

Rudningen

Well-being Committee Fox As needed

Rudningen

ADVISORY COMMITTEES:

Appleton Park Board Hendrickx

Revolving Loan Fund Entire Board

Extension Committee Pederson 4th Wednesday Quarterly

Rudningen Jan, April, July, Oct

RDA/GROW Boards Pederson 3rd Thursday

Peterson/Alternate

Swift County Law Library Peterson

Planning Commission Rudningen

Prairie V CAC Board Peterson 4th Monday 10:00 a.m. Montevideo

Prairie Lakes Detention Bd Rudningen 3rd Wednesday 9:00 a.m.

Peterson/Alternate

SCEMO Peterson bi-monthly

Rudningen

Swift County DAC Board Pederson 3rd Wednesday 12:00 Noon

2011  BOARD  REPRESENTATION

80



 2018  BOARD  REPRESENTATION

COMMITTEE/GROUP REPRESENTATIVE DAY OF MEETING MEETING TIME PLACE

Upper Mn Val Reg Dev Com Hendrickx 4th Tuesdays Evenings

Water Planning Committee Pederson

Jobs Training/Private Ind.Co Fox Quarterly

Pioneerland Library System Rudningen 3rd Thursday Quarterly

Safety Pederson

Historical Society Pederson 4th Thursday

Countryside Public Health Peterson 2nd Wednesday Monthly Montevideo

West Minn Revolving Loan Fox

Swift Falls Park Board Rudningen

SW Mental Health Bd Fox

RIDES Advisory Council Peterson

Region 6W FEMA Board Peterson Annually

Chippewa River Watershed Fox 3rd Friday Monthly

Pomme de Terre Watershed Fox 2nd Friday

Hospital Government Group Pederson As needed - 2 or 3 times a year

Peterson

Glacial Trail Scenic Biway Rudningen 4th Monday

Woodland Centers Hendrickx 2nd Thursday

Fox

HRA Board Peterson

Joint Engineer Committee Peterson As needed

Rudningen 

SWCD Pederson 2nd Thursday 8AM Benson

 

Restorative Justice Fox 2nd Tuesday

 

Sheriff's Task Force Pederson

Peterson

Swift County Benson Hospital Fox

81



 2018  BOARD  REPRESENTATION

COMMITTEE/GROUP REPRESENTATIVE DAY OF MEETING MEETING TIME PLACE

C 6 Drug Task Force Rudningen 

 

Prariie Waters Tourism Hendrickx

RDA Loan Committee Pederson

6W Corrections Hendrickx 1st Thursday

Peterson

Radio Board Rudningen 

Peterson/Alternate

Nurse Family Partnership Peterson Quarterly 2nd Monday

1,4,7,10

Southern Prairie Community Care Hendrickx 4th Friday

Fox Alternate

  

MN Public Sector Collabortive Rudningen Quarterly

82



Appointments made by the County Board

 Board Start
Board/Committee/Commission Appointment District Year Current Term Ends

SCBH Board of Directors Kory Johnson 2 2012 12/31/2018

Patty Schreck 3 2009 12/31/2018

Joe Fox 4 2010 12/31/2019

Richard Horecka, MD 3 2013 12/31/2019

Brian Samuelson 2 2008 12/31/2017

Tom Anderson 2016 12/31/2018

Jill Hedman 2014? 12/31/2019

Pat Langan 2016 12/31/2017

Terri Collins 2016 12/31/2017

Adult Members

Swift County Extension Committee Kevin Voorhees 4 2009 12/31/2018

Matt Mattheisen 3 2013 12/31/2018

Earl Molden 1 2017 12/31/2019

Polly Johnson 2 2014 12/31/2019

Jess & Tammy Berge 5 2015 12/31/2020

Open 4

Youth Members

Regan Carlson 5 2017 12/31/2018

Open

* Karla Schmidt 1 2010 12/31/2021

Swift County HRA Julie Commerford 2012 12/31/2022

* Denotes Section 8 member Jessy Engelke 2018 12/31/2023

Pete Peterson 3 2006 1/31/2017

Deb Kneisl 4 2018 12/31/2023

Sue Hauer 5 2013 12/31/2018

Lindsey Bruer 1 2013 12/31/2018

Jon Panzer 1 2014 12/31/2019

Swift County RDA Open Open 12/31/2019

Terri Barrett 5 2017 12/31/2019

Amanda Ness 4 2012 12/31/2017

Eric Carlson 3 2017 12/31/2020

Stephanie Heinzig 2 2017 12/31/2020

Richard Molenaar 5 2016 12/31/2018

Brady Olson 2 2016 12/31/2018

* John Gorres 4 2002 12/31/2015

Swift County Planning Commission * Paul Ahrndt 4 2009 12/31/2015

* Denotes BOA members * Bruce Felt 5 2001 12/31/2016

* Tom Walsh 4 2002 12/31/2016

* Joe Carruth 4 2015 12/31/2018

Eric Rudningen 5 2015 12/31/2018

Roger Schmidt 4 2015 12/31/2018

Swift County Board Appointments

83



2018 JOINT  COUNTY DITCH BOARDS

JOINT COUNTY DITCH BOARD REPRESENTATIVE DAY OF MEETING MEETING TIME PLACE

JT CO DITCH NO. 2 (S & S) Hendrickx

Fox 

JT CO DITCH NO. 3 (C & S) Pederson

Fox 

JT CO DITCH NO. 4 (S & P) Peterson

Hendrickx

Rudningen

JT CO DITCH NO. 6 (C & S) Peterson

Fox 

JT CO DITCH NO. 8 (C & S) Fox

Rudningen

JT CO DITCH NO. 9 (C & S) Fox

Pederson

JT CO DITCH NO. 9 (S, S, & P) Rudningen

Fox

JT CO DITCH NO. 18 (S,K, & C) Fox

Pederson

Hendrickx

LAT B OF JT CO DITCH NO. 18 (S & C) Fox

Pederson

Hendrickx

LAT C OF JT CO DITCH NO. 18 (S,K,&C) Fox

Pederson

Hendrickx

JT CO DITCH NO. 19 (S & K) Hendrickx

Peterson

Rudningen

Fox

JT CO DITCH NO. 21 (S, K, & C) Hendrickx

Peterson

Rudningen

 
JOINT COUNTY DITCH BOARDS

84



 

Request for Board Action 

 BOARD MEETING DATE: 

Commissioner's Report 
December 19, 2017 

 

Department Information 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: REQUESTOR: REQUESTOR PHONE: 

Administration Kelsey Baker 320-314-8399 
 

Agenda Item Details 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF YOUR REQUEST: 

Discussion on SCBH board appointment 
AGENDA YOU ARE REQUESTING TIME ON: ARE YOU SEEKING APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT? 

Other Business Click here to enter text. 
IS THIS MANDATED? EXPLANATION OF MANDATE: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
BACKGROUND/JUSTIFICATION: 

Brian Samuelson –term ends 12/31/2017  
Pat Langan – term ends 12/31/2017  
Dr. Horecka – term ends 12/31/2019 
Joe Fox – term ends 12/31/19 
Kory Johnson – term ends 12/31/18 
PREVIOUS ACTION ON REQUEST / OTHER PARTIES 
INVOLVED? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

Budget Information 

FUNDING:  
 

Review/Recommendation 

COUNTY ATTORNEY: COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: 
Danielle Olson Kelsey Baker 
RECOMMENDATIONS: RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
COMMENTS: COMMENTS: 

Click here to enter text. Click here to enter text. 
 

 

85



86



 

 

Swift County Board of Commissioners 

2018 Work Plan 

 

Jan 2, 2018 – 9:00 AM 

 Organizational Meeting 

o Board Appointments 

 Commissioners 

 Advisory 

o Appointment to Ditch Boards 

o Set 2018 Elected Officials Salary 

o Appointment of Coroner 

o Set 2018 Bounties 

o Set 2018 mileage reimbursement rate 

o Designate newspaper for publications 

 

Jan 16, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 4th Quarter 2016 Treasurer Report 

 4th Quarter 2016 Executive Departmental Budget Report 

 

Feb 6, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

Feb 20, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

Mar 6, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 Discuss Wheelage Tax 

 

Mar 20, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 Consider taking action for 2019 Wheelage Tax 

 Set Road Tour 

 

Apr 3, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

Apr 17, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 1st Quarter 2018 Treasurer Report 

 1st Quarter 2018 Executive Departmental Budget Report 

 

May 1, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 2018 Initial Budget Workshop 

 

May 15, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

June 5, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

June 19, 2018  – 5:00 PM with Swift County Board of Assessment and Equalization running until at least 

7:00 PM  

 

July 3, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 HRA 2018 preliminary budget and Levy Request 

 RDA 2018 preliminary budget and Levy Request 

 

87



 

 

 

 

July 17, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 2nd Quarter 2018 Treasurer Report 

 2nd Quarter 2018 Executive Departmental Budget Report 

 

Aug 7, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 Review 2018 Department Budget Requests 

 

Aug 21, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

Sept 4, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 Last Regular meeting to set 2018 HRA and RDA Levies and Preliminary Budgets 

 

Sept 18, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 Review Ditch Assessments  

 Last Regular meeting to set 2019 County Levy and Preliminary Budget 

 Set TNT Meeting Date 

 

Oct 2, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 Approve Ditch Assessments 

  

Oct 16, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 3rd Quarter 2018 Treasurer Report 

 3rd Quarter 2018 Executive Departmental Budget Report 

 

Nov 6, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

Nov 20, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 

Dec 5, 2018  – Starts at 5:00 PM with TNT Hearing no earlier than 6:00 PM 

 TNT Hearing 

 

Dec 18, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 Set 2019 County Commissioners compensation 

 Last Regular meeting to set 2019 County Final Levy and Final Budget 

 Last Regular meeting to set 2019 HRA and RDA Final Levies and Final Budgets 

 

Dec 28, 2018  – 9:00 AM 

 2018 Reallocation Requests 

 2018 Final Disbursements 

 Administrator’s Review 

 

88


	01 12-06-17 draft
	02 Board Memo - Attorney
	02a Board Ratification
	02b Final Executed STI Contract 1-1-18 (003)
	03 Request for Board Action - Annual Contracts SCHS 2018
	04 DCP Agreement MNDOT 2017
	04a DCP 2017
	05 Request for Board Action Form - 2018-2020 Recycling Contract
	05a 2018-2020 Geyer Recyc. Contr
	06 County Buffer Ord_edits 12_12_2018 DRAFT
	06a County Buffer Ord_edits 12_12_2018 after edits are accepted
	07 Request for Board Action - SW18 MH Initiative Letter of Support for DHS Grant
	07a SMAMH Innovation Grant Letter of Support
	08 Request for Board Action - CW-JJ Screening Grant 2018
	08a 2018 CS-JJ Screening Grant Contract
	09a Out of Home Placement Data 11-2017
	09b 1117 Fiscal Summary
	1117 Fiscal Summary
	Sheet1

	2017 Yearly Comparison
	Sheet1


	10 Request for Board Action - 2018 Budget
	10a 2018 Final Budget Board Resolution
	10b 2018 RDA Levy resolution
	10c 2018 HRA Levy resolution
	10d Request for Board Action - 2018 Commissioner Wages
	10e 2018 Resolution - Setting Board Salaries
	11 2018 Board Representation
	11a 2018 Board Representation - Boards
	11c 2018 Board Representation - Ditch
	12 Request Form - Hospital Board
	12a SCBHS County Reappointment Recommendation 12-13-17 Signed
	13 2018 Work Plan



